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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

OR

¨ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM             TO             

Commission File Number 0-27975

Mattersight Corporation
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)
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Delaware 36-4304577
(State or Other Jurisdiction of

Incorporation or Organization)

(I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)
200 S. Wacker Drive

Suite 820

Chicago, Illinois 60606

(Address of Registrant�s Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

(877) 235-6925

(Registrant�s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (Section 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
(Check one):

Large accelerated filer ¨ Accelerated filer x

Non-accelerated filer ¨  (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x

The number of shares of the registrant�s Common Stock outstanding as of July 31, 2012 was 16,892,297.
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Part I. Financial Information

Item 1. Financial Statements

MATTERSIGHT CORPORATION

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited and in thousands, except share and per share data)

June 30,
2012

December 31,
2011

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,474 $ 29,408
Restricted cash �  1,500
Receivables (net of allowances of $10 and $13) 1,822 2,540
Prepaid expenses 6,739 5,302
Other current assets 548 288

Total current assets 29,583 39,038
Equipment and leasehold improvements, net 4,535 4,271
Goodwill 972 972
Intangibles, net 239 238
Other long-term assets 4,328 4,746

Total assets $ 39,657 $ 49,265

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY:

Current Liabilities:
Short-term debt $ 3,691 $ 3,567
Accounts payable 1,520 812
Accrued compensation and related costs 1,201 1,382
Unearned revenue 6,381 9,783
Other current liabilities 3,848 3,673

Total current liabilities 16,641 19,217
Long-term unearned revenue 2,350 3,036
Other long-term liabilities 860 1,401

Total liabilities 19,851 23,654

Series B Stock, $0.01 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized and designated; 1,650,875 and 1,670,696
shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively, with a liquidation
preference of $8,714 and $8,819 at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively 8,419 8,521

Stockholders� Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 35,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding �  �  
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized; 18,174,618 and 18,037,552 shares issued at
June 30, 2012, and at December 31, 2011, respectively; and 16,945,330 and 16,935,204 outstanding at
June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively 182 180
Additional paid-in capital 214,653 212,618
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Accumulated deficit (192,720) (185,779) 
Treasury stock, at cost, 1,229,288 and 1,102,348 shares at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
respectively (6,688) (5,891) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (4,040) (4,038) 

Total stockholders� equity 11,387 17,090

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 39,657 $ 49,265

See accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MATTERSIGHT CORPORATION

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per share data)

For the For the
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30,

2012
July 2,
2011

June 30,
2012

July 2,
2011

Revenue:
Behavioral Analytics revenue $ 7,557 $ 6,288 $ 16,113 $ 12,255
Other revenue 376 339 721 919

Total services revenue 7,933 6,627 16,834 13,174
Reimbursed expenses 102 76 200 153

Total revenue 8,035 6,703 17,034 13,327
Operating expenses:
Cost of Behavioral Analytics revenue 2,947 2,894 6,135 5,656
Cost of other revenue 187 254 391 596

Cost of services 3,134 3,148 6,526 6,252
Reimbursed expenses 102 76 200 153

Total cost of revenue, exclusive of depreciation and amortization: 3,236 3,224 6,726 6,405
Sales, marketing and development 5,447 4,764 10,631 9,630
General and administrative 2,007 2,614 3,963 5,369
Severance and related costs 14 (434) 693 (430) 
Depreciation and amortization 755 820 1,622 1,595

Total operating expenses 11,459 10,988 23,635 22,569

Operating loss (3,424) (4,285) (6,601) (9,242) 
Interest and other (expense) income, net (113) (53) (215) 78

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes (3,537) (4,338) (6,816) (9,164) 
Income tax (provision) benefit (11) 3,563 (21) 3,628

Loss from continuing operations (3,548) (775) (6,837) (5,536) 
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of tax (23) 28,065 (104) 28,187

Net (loss) income (3,571) 27,290 (6,941) 22,651
Dividends related to Series B Stock (148) (317) (297) (634) 

Net (loss) income available to common stockholders $ (3,719) $ 26,973 $ (7,238) $ 22,017

Per common share:
Basic loss from continuing operations (See Note Eighteen) $ (0.23) $ (0.08) $ (0.45) $ (0.44) 

Basic (loss) income from discontinued operations $ (0.00) $ 1.99 $ (0.01) $ 2.01
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Basic net (loss) income available to common stockholders $ (0.23) $ 1.91 $ (0.46) $ 1.57

Per common share:
Diluted loss from continuing operations (See Note Eighteen) $ (0.23) $ (0.08) $ (0.45) $ (0.44) 

Diluted (loss) income from discontinued operations $ (0.00) $ 1.99 $ (0.01) $ 2.01

Diluted net (loss) income available to common stockholders $ (0.23) $ 1.91 $ (0.46) $ 1.57

Shares used to calculate basic net loss per share 15,966 14,111 15,858 14,032

Shares used to calculate diluted net loss per share 15,966 14,111 15,858 14,032

Stock-based compensation, primarily restricted stock, is included in individual line items
above:
Cost of Behavioral Analytics revenue $ 5 $ 7 $ 11 $ 14
Sales, marketing and development 557 899 1,254 1,771
General and administrative 314 680 714 1,230
Severance and related costs �  �  268 �  
Discontinued operations �  1,491 �  1,568

See accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

2
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MATTERSIGHT CORPORATION

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(Unaudited and in thousands)

For the For the
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30,

2012
July 2,
2011

June 30,
2012

July 2,
2011

Net (loss) income $ (3,571) $ 27,290 $ (6,941) $ 22,651
Other comprehensive loss:
Effect of currency translation (7) (24) (2) (116) 

Comprehensive net (loss) income $ (3,578) $ 27,266 $ (6,943) $ 22,535

See accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

3
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MATTERSIGHT CORPORATION

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited and in thousands)

For the Six Months Ended
June 30,

2012
July 2,
2011

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net (loss) income $ (6,941) $ 22,651
Less: net (loss) income from discontinued operations (104) 28,187

Net loss from continuing operations (6,837) (5,536) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss from continuing operations to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,622 1,595
Stock-based compensation 1,979 3,015
Severance and related costs 268 �  
Other (2) 12
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables 720 (234) 
Prepaid expenses (1,035) (2,186) 
Other assets (276) 97
Accounts payable 708 731
Accrued compensation and related costs (181) (169) 
Unearned revenue (4,088) 435
Other liabilities (195) (4,227) 

Total adjustments (480) (931) 

Net cash used in continuing operations (7,317) (6,467) 
Net cash used in discontinued operations (179) (4,685) 

Net cash used in operating activities (7,496) (11,152) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures and other (900) (605) 

Net cash used in continuing investing activities (900) (605) 
Net cash (used in) provided by discontinued investing activities �  33,939

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (900) 33,334

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from line of credit 3,691 �  
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash 1,500 (17,140) 
Purchase of shares of Series B Stock (3,743) �  
Principal payments under capital lease obligations (1,070) (989) 
Acquisition of treasury stock (797) (513) 
Payment of Series B Stock dividends (300) (1,901) 
Fees from issuance of common stock (49) �  
Proceeds from stock compensation and employee stock purchase plans, net 233 62
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Net cash used in continuing financing activities (535) (20,481) 
Net cash used in discontinued financing activities �  (678) 

Net cash used in financing activities (535) (21,159) 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents by continuing operations (3) (69) 
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents by discontinued operations �  (233) 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (3) (302) 

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (8,934) 721
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 29,408 20,872

Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations, end of period $ 20,474 $ 21,593

4
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For the Six Months Ended
June 30,

2012
July 2,
2011

Non-Cash Investing and Financing Transactions:
Capital lease obligations incurred $ 987 $ 2,081
Capital equipment purchased on credit 987 2,081
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid $ 214 $ 87

See accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

5
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MATTERSIGHT CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

Note One � General

In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Mattersight Corporation (�we,�
�Mattersight,� or the �Company�) include all normal and recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of our condensed consolidated
financial position as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the condensed consolidated results of our operations for the three months and six
months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011, the condensed consolidated statements of our comprehensive loss for the three months and six
months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011, and our condensed consolidated cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2,
2011, and are in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles (�GAAP�) and in conformity with Securities and
Exchange Commission (�SEC�) Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X; provided, that certain information and disclosures normally included in financial
statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted.

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial
statements and the notes thereto in Mattersight�s Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 filed with the SEC
on May 14, 2012. The results of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2012 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for
the full year.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Recent Developments

On May 14, 2012, the Company filed an amendment to its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 in order to restate its annual
consolidated financial statements for the fiscal years 2011, 2010, and 2009. This restatement corrected an error relating to the Company�s
calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from continuing operations in its previously issued financial statements. Specifically, the
Company did not deduct dividends and, in 2011, other payments made in respect of the Company�s 7% Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, par
value $0.01 per share (�Series B Stock�), when calculating basic and diluted loss per share from continuing operations in accordance with
Accounting Standards Codification 260, �Earnings Per Share�. The restatement had no effect on any other amounts or financial statement line
items. In connection with the error, the Company also determined that the prior financial statements should not be relied upon and filed a
Current Report on Form 8-K under Item 4.02�Non-Reliance on Previously Issued Financial Statements� on May 10, 2012.

Note Two � Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Company changed the revenue classification of one contract from Other revenue to Behavioral Analytics revenue in the fourth quarter of
2011 to better reflect the type of services provided under this contract. Revenue for this contract has been reclassified in all historical periods. As
a result, the Company reclassified $0.1 million and $0.3 million for the three months and six months ended July 2, 2011, respectively, from
Other revenue to Behavioral Analytics revenue. Cost of services for this contract has also been reclassified. As a result, the Company
reclassified $0.1 million for the three months and six months ended July 2, 2011 from Cost of Other revenue to Cost of Behavioral Analytics
revenue.

Certain leadership, recruiting, and facility management expenses that have been previously reported as Sales, marketing and development have
been reclassified to General and administrative. As a result, the Company reclassified $0.5 million and $1.0 million for the three months and six
months ended July 2, 2011 from Sales, marketing and development to General and administrative.

The changes in the preceding paragraphs did not have an impact on net (loss) income and are not material to the financial statements.

6
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For a complete description of the Company�s Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, see Note Two �Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies� of the �Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements� included in our Annual Report filed on Form 10-K/A for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

Note Three � Discontinued Operations

The sale by the Company of the Integrated Contact Solutions (�ICS�) Business Unit and �eLoyalty� registered trademark / trade name to Magellan
Acquisition Sub, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company and wholly-owned subsidiary of TeleTech Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation,
closed on May 28, 2011, and the Company changed its name from eLoyalty Corporation to Mattersight Corporation effective May 31, 2011.
Therefore, the results of operations of the ICS Business Unit are reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented. Additionally,
certain corporate and general costs that had historically been allocated to the ICS Business Unit were reallocated to the Company and are
reflected in all periods presented.

The following table summarizes the components included within the (loss) income from discontinued operations, net of tax within the
Company�s Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the periods indicated.

For the For the
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

(In millions)
June 30,

2012
July 2,
2011

June 30,
2012

July 2,
2011

Net sales $ �  $ 9.2 $ �  $ 22.9
Total expenses �  (10.2) (0.1) (23.7) 
Gain from sale of assets �  36.4 �  36.4
Provision for income taxes �  (7.3) �  (7.4) 

(Loss) Income from discontinued operations $ �  $ 28.1 $ (0.1) $ 28.2

Note Four � Revenue Recognition

Continuing Operations

Behavioral Analytics Revenue

Behavioral Analytics revenue consists of Managed services revenue and Consulting services revenue.

Managed services revenue consists of planning, deployment, training, and subscription fees derived from Behavioral Analytics contracts.
Planning, deployment, and training fees, which are considered to be installation fees related to Behavioral Analytics subscription contracts, are
deferred until the installation is complete and are then recognized over the subscription period of the applicable subscription contract. The
subscription periods of these contracts generally range from three to five years after the go-live date or, in cases where the Company contracts
with a client for a short-term pilot of Behavioral Analytics prior to committing to a longer subscription period, the subscription or pilot periods
generally range from three to twelve months after the go-live date. Installation costs incurred are deferred up to an amount not to exceed the
amount of deferred installation revenue and additional amounts that are recoverable based on the contractual arrangement. These costs are
included in Prepaid expenses and Other long-term assets. Such costs are amortized over the subscription period of the contract. Costs in excess
of the foregoing revenue amount are expensed in the period incurred.

The amount of revenue generated from subscription fees is based on a number of factors, such as the number of users to whom the Behavioral
Analytics Service is provided and/or the number of hours of calls analyzed during the relevant month of the subscription period. This revenue is
recognized as the service is performed for the client.

Consulting services revenue primarily consists of fees charged to the Company�s clients to provide post-deployment follow-on consulting
services, which include custom data analysis, the implementation of enhancements, and training. These follow-on consulting services are
generally performed for the Company�s clients on a fixed-fee basis. Revenue is recognized as the services are performed, with performance
generally assessed on the ratio of actual hours incurred to-date compared to the total estimated hours over the entire term of the contract.
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Other Revenue

Other revenue consists of Marketing Managed Services revenue and CRM Services revenue.

Marketing Managed Services revenue is derived from marketing application hosting. This revenue is generally in the form of fixed monthly fees
received from the Company�s clients and is recognized as the services are performed for the client. Any related setup fee would be recognized
over the contract period of the hosting arrangement.

CRM Services revenue consists of fees generated from the Company�s operational consulting services, which are provided to the Company�s
clients on a time-and-materials or fixed-fee basis. The Company recognizes revenue as the services are performed for time-and-materials
projects. For fixed-fee projects, revenue is recognized based on the ratio of hours incurred to-date compared to the total estimated hours over the
entire term of the contract.

Reimbursed expenses revenue includes billable costs related to travel and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred while performing services for
the Company�s clients. An equivalent amount of reimbursable expenses is included in Cost of revenue.

Payments received for Managed services contracts in excess of the amount of revenue recognized for these contracts are recorded as unearned
revenue until revenue recognition criteria are met.

Discontinued Operations

ICS Business Unit

Managed services revenue included in the ICS Business Unit consisted of fees generated from the Company�s contact center support and
monitoring services. Support and monitoring services generally were contracted for a fixed fee, and the revenue was recognized ratably over the
term of the contract. Support fees that were contracted on a time-and-materials basis were recognized as the services were performed for the
client.

For fixed fee Managed services contracts, where the Company provided support for third-party software and hardware, revenue was recorded at
the gross amount of the sale. If the contract did not meet the requirements for gross reporting, then Managed services revenue was recorded at
the net amount of the sale.

Consulting services revenue included in the ICS Business Unit consisted of the modeling, planning, configuring, or integrating of an Internet
Protocol network solution within the Company�s clients� contact center environments. These services were provided to clients on a
time-and-materials or fixed-fee basis. For the integration of a system, the Company recognized revenue as the services were performed, with
performance generally assessed on the ratio of hours incurred to date compared to the total estimated hours over the entire term of the contract.
For all other consulting services, the Company recognized revenue as the services were performed for the client.

Revenue from the sale of Product, which was generated primarily from the resale of third-party software and hardware by the Company, was
generally recorded at the gross amount of the sale when it was delivered to the client.

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) amended the accounting standards for revenue recognition to remove
tangible products containing software components and non-software components that function together to deliver the product�s essential
functionality from the scope of industry-specific software revenue recognition guidance. In October 2009, the FASB also amended the
accounting standards for multiple deliverable revenue arrangements to:

(i) provide updated guidance on whether multiple deliverables exist, how the deliverables in an arrangement should be separated, and
how the consideration should be allocated;

(ii) require an entity to allocate revenue in an arrangement using estimated selling prices (�ESP�) of deliverables if a vendor does not have
vendor-specific objective evidence of selling price (�VSOE�) or third-party evidence of selling price (�TPE�); and
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The Company elected to adopt this accounting guidance at the beginning of the first quarter of fiscal year 2011 on a prospective basis. The
adoption of this guidance does not impact the Company�s revenue recognition with respect to Behavioral Analytics because the implementation
services sold with its Managed services are not separated into multiple accounting units because there is no standalone fair value for these
services. The Company recognizes these services revenues over the anticipated subscription period. This accounting guidance does not change
the units of accounting for the Company�s revenue transactions or the methods used to allocate consideration to the units of accounting. The
revenue recognition for each of these offerings is discussed below.

For the ICS Business Unit, the Company utilized VSOE to allocate revenue to various elements in an arrangement. The Company determined
VSOE based on its normal pricing and discounting practices for the product or service when sold separately. In determining VSOE, the
Company required that a substantial majority of the selling prices for a product or consulting services fall within a reasonably narrow pricing
range, generally evidenced by approximately 80% of such historical standalone transactions falling within plus or minus 20% of the median
selling price. For the ICS Business Unit�s managed services, the Company established VSOE through the stated renewal approach. Previously,
the Company was able to establish VSOE for its product and service offerings except for software. If the Company was not able to establish
VSOE for an offering, it attempted to establish fair value by utilizing TPE. TPE is established by obtaining evidence from comparable offerings
from a peer company. If the Company was unable to establish fair value using VSOE or TPE, then the Company used ESP in its allocation of
revenue. To determine ESP, the Company applied significant judgment as it weighed a variety of factors, based on the facts and circumstances
of the arrangement. These factors included internal costs, gross margin objectives, and existing portfolio pricing and discounting.

Within discontinued operations, some of the Company�s sales arrangements had multiple deliverables containing software and related software
components. Such sale arrangements were subject to the accounting guidance in ASC 985-605, Software Revenue Recognition.

Note Five � Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has two stock-based compensation plans, as described more fully in Note 14 in the Company�s Annual Report filed on
Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011. Stock-based compensation expense from continuing operations was $0.9 million and $1.6
million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011, respectively, and $2.0 million and $3.0 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011, respectively. The Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period. The Company has established its forfeiture rate based on historical experience.

As of June 30, 2012, there were a total of 1,155,974 shares of Common Stock available for future grants under the Company�s 1999 Stock
Incentive Plan and from treasury stock.

Restricted Stock

The Company recognized compensation expense related to restricted stock awards of $0.6 million and $1.4 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011, respectively, and $1.4 million and $2.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011,
respectively.

Restricted and installment stock award activity was as follows for the six months ended June 30, 2012:

Shares

Weighted
Average

Price
Nonvested balance at December 31, 2011 1,286,113 $ 6.33

Granted 298,914 $ 7.93
Vested (414,655) $ 6.77
Forfeited (215,286) $ 6.00

Nonvested balance at June 30, 2012 955,086 $ 6.71

9
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For the For the
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

(In millions)
June 30,

2012
July 2,
2011

June 30,
2012

July 2,
2011

Total fair value of restricted and installment stock awards vested $ 1.0 $ 2.5 $ 2.6 $ 3.4
As of June 30, 2012, there remained $5.4 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to restricted and installment stock awards
related to continuing operations. These costs are expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.9 years.

Stock Options

The Company recognized compensation expense related to option awards of $0.2 million and $0.5 million for the three months and six months
ended June 30, 2012, respectively, and $0.1 million and $0.3 million for the three months and six months ended July 2, 2011, respectively.

During the three months ended June 30, 2012, a total of 105,378 options were granted. On May 17, 2012 certain employees received options to
purchase from the Company a total of 73,336 shares of Common Stock. These options vest 6.25% on August 31, 2012, and the balance will vest
ratably over the following 15 quarters, with a maximum term of 10 years. The exercise price per share is $7.99, the closing price of a share of
Common Stock on the grant date. Then on May 18, 2012, the Company�s non-employee directors received options to purchase from the
Company a total of 32,042 shares of Common Stock. These options vest 25% on May 31, 2013, and the balance will vest ratably over the
following 12 quarters, with a maximum term of 10 years. The exercise price per share is $7.70, the closing price of a share of Common Stock on
the grant date.

Option activity was as follows for the six months ended June 30, 2012:

Options

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price
Outstanding as of December 31, 2011 1,227,935 $ 10.95

Granted 705,378 $ 6.11
Exercised (38,600) $ 4.14
Forfeited (73,767) $ 20.41

Outstanding as of June 30, 2012 1,820,946 $ 8.83

Exercisable as of June 30, 2012 1,024,693 $ 11.04

Outstanding intrinsic value at June 30, 2012 (in millions) $ 3.5

Exercisable intrinsic value at June 30, 2012 (in millions) $ 1.9

For the For the
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

(In millions)
June 30,

2012
July 2,
2011

June 30,
2012

July 2,
2011

Total fair value of stock options vested $ 0.3 $ 0.3 $ 0.5 $ 0.5
Intrinsic value of stock options exercised $ 0.1 $ �  $ 0.2 $ �  
Proceeds received from option exercises $ 0.1 $ �  $ 0.2 $ �  

As of June 30, 2012, there remains $2.8 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to stock options. These costs are expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of 2.1 years.
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The fair value for options granted during the six months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011 was estimated on the date of grant using a
Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The Company used the following assumptions:

For the Six Months Ended
June 30,

2012
July 2,
2011

Risk-free interest rates 0.57% 1.2% 
Expected dividend yield �  �  
Expected volatility 67% 68% 
Expected lives 6 years 6 years

Historical Company information is the primary basis for the selection of expected life, expected volatility, and expected dividend yield
assumptions. The risk-free interest rate is selected based on the yields from U.S. Treasury Strips with a remaining term equal to the expected
term of the options being valued.

Other Stock Compensation

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under the Company�s Employee Stock Purchase Plan, eligible employees are permitted to purchase shares of Common Stock at below-market
prices. The purchase period opens on the first business day and ends on the last business day of each calendar quarter. A total of 5,823 shares
and 5,756 shares of Common Stock were issued during the three months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011, respectively, and 14,303 shares
and 11,684 shares were issued during the six months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011, respectively. We recorded $11 thousand and
$8 thousand of expense for this plan for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011, respectively, and $24 thousand and
$17 thousand of expense for this plan for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011, respectively.

Note Six � Severance and Related Costs

Severance costs are comprised primarily of contractual salary and related fringe benefits over the severance payment period. Facility costs
include losses on contractual lease commitments, net of estimated sublease recoveries, and impairment of leasehold improvements and certain
office assets.

Continuing Operations

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2012, the Company recorded less than $0.1 million and $0.7 million, respectively, of expense for
continuing operations related to severance and related costs for the elimination of one position. For the three months and six months ended
July 2, 2011, the Company recorded $0.4 million of income for continuing operations related to the favorable renegotiation of a facility lease,
partially offset by the severance and related costs for the elimination of one position.

For the six months ended June 30, 2012, the Company made cash payments of $0.7 million related to cost-reduction actions and facility
operating expense for continuing operations. For the six months ended July 2, 2011, the Company made cash payments of $0.1 million related to
cost-reduction actions for continuing operations.

11

Edgar Filing: Mattersight Corp - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 20



Table of Contents

The severance and related costs and their utilization for the six months ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Employee
(In millions) Severance Facilities Total
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ �  $ �  $ �  

Charges 0.7 �  0.7
Adjustments charged to severance and related costs �  �  �  

Charged to severance and related costs 0.7 �  0.7
Payments (0.7) �  (0.7) 
Other �  �  �  

Balance, June 30, 2012 $ �  $ �  $ �  

As of June 30, 2012, there is no amount reserved for continuing operations relating to severance and related costs.

The severance and related costs and their utilization for the six months ended July 2, 2011 was as follows:

Employee
(In millions) Severance Facilities Total
Balance, January 1, 2011 $ �  $ 0.3 $ 0.3

Charges �  (0.2) (0.2) 
Adjustments charged to severance and related costs �  (0.2) (0.2) 

Charged to severance and related costs �  (0.4) (0.4) 
Payments �  (0.1) (0.1) 

Balance, July 2, 2011 $ �  $ �  $ �  

The $14 thousand that remained reserved as of July 2, 2011 for continuing operations related to office lease payments, net of estimated sublease
recoveries, and these lease payments are made pursuant to contractual lease terms. The $14 thousand balance is recorded in �Other current
liabilities�.

Discontinued Operations

For the three months and six months ended June 30, 2012, no cost reduction activities were undertaken in discontinued operations. For the three
months ended July 2, 2011, no cost reduction activities were undertaken in discontinued operations. For the six months ended July 2, 2011, the
Company recorded $0.2 million of expense related to severance and related costs of discontinued operations for the elimination of 11 positions.

For the six months ended June 30, 2012, the Company had no accrual and made no cash payments related to cost-reduction actions for
discontinued operations. For the six months ended July 2, 2011, the Company made cash payments of $0.1 million related to cost-reduction
actions for discontinued operations, which were related to severance and related costs.

The severance and related costs and their utilization for the six months ended July 2, 2011 was as follows:

Employee
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(In millions) Severance
Balance, January 1, 2011 $ �  

Charges 0.2
Adjustments charged to severance and related costs �  

Charged to severance and related costs 0.2
Payments (0.1) 

Balance, July 2, 2011 $ 0.1

12
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As of July 2, 2011, the $0.1 million that remained reserved for discontinued operations related to severance and related costs. The $0.1 million
balance was recorded in �Accrued compensation and related costs.�

Note Seven � Current Prepaid Expenses

Current prepaid expenses were $6.7 million and $5.3 million as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. Current prepaid
expenses primarily consist of deferred costs and prepaid commissions related to Behavioral Analytics contracts. These costs are recognized over
the subscription periods of the respective agreements, generally three to five years after the go-live date or, in cases where the Company
contracts with a client for a short-term pilot of Behavioral Analytics prior to committing to a longer subscription period, the subscription or pilot
periods generally range from three to twelve months after the go-live date. Costs included in current prepaid expenses will be recognized within
the next twelve months. Current prepaid expenses consisted of the following:

As of

(In millions)
June 30,

2012
December 31,

2011
Deferred costs $ 2.7 $ 2.5
Prepaid commissions 2.0 2.0
Other 2.0 0.8

Total $ 6.7 $ 5.3

Note Eight � Intangible Assets, net

Net intangible assets were $0.2 million as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011. Intangible assets reflect costs related to patent and
trademark applications, Marketing Managed Services customer relationships acquired in 2004, and the 2003 purchase of a license for certain
intellectual property. Patent and trademark applications are amortized over a period of 120 months. The other intangible assets are fully
amortized. Amortization expense of intangible assets for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2012 was $16 thousand and $33
thousand, respectively, and will be $43 thousand annually thereafter. There was an impairment charge of $2 thousand during the six months
ended June 30, 2012.

As of

(In millions)
June 30,

2012
December 31,

2011
Gross intangible assets $ 2.8 $ 2.8
Accumulated amortization of intangible assets (2.6) (2.6) 

Total $ 0.2 $ 0.2

Note Nine � Other Long-Term Assets

Other long-term assets were $4.3 million as of June 30, 2012 and $4.7 million as of December 31, 2011. Other long-term assets primarily consist
of deferred costs and prepaid commissions related to Behavioral Analytics. These costs are recognized over the terms of the respective
agreements, generally three to five years. Costs included in long-term assets will be recognized over the remaining term of the agreements
beyond the first twelve months. Other long-term assets consisted of the following:

As of
June 30, December 31,

(In millions) 2012 2011
Deferred costs $ 1.9 $ 2.4
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Prepaid commissions 1.8 2.2
Other 0.6 0.1

Total $ 4.3 $ 4.7
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Note Ten � Short-Term Debt

On June 29, 2012, the Company, together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries Mattersight Europe Holding Corporation and Mattersight
International Holding, Inc., as co-borrowers, entered into a Loan and Security Agreement with Silicon Valley Bank (the �Credit Facility�). The
Credit Facility provides for a $10.0 million revolving line of credit maturing in 2014 and is secured by a security interest in the Company�s
accounts receivable, equipment, inventory, cash, deposit accounts, securities, and all other investment property, supporting obligations, financial
assets, and other personal property, with the exception of the Company�s intellectual property rights. On June 29, 2012, the Company used the
Credit Facility to repay in full the principal balance of $3.6 million and accrued and unpaid interest outstanding of $0.1 million under the
promissory notes issued by the Company to various affiliates of Technology Crossover Ventures to settle previously disclosed arbitration, in an
amount equal to approximately $3.7 million. The $3.7 million principal amount outstanding under the Credit Facility will accrue interest at a
floating annual rate equal to three quarters of one percentage point (0.75%) above the United States prime rate, payable monthly. In addition, the
Company will pay a commitment fee on the Credit Facility and a fee equal to one-eighth of one percent (0.125%) per annum of the average
unused portion of the Credit Facility, payable quarterly in arrears. Short-term debt was $3.7 million as of June 30, 2012 and accrued interest
related to the transaction was a nominal amount.

Note Eleven � Loss Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of the loss and shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share:

For the Three Months Ended
June 30, July 2,

(In millions) 2012 2011
Loss from continuing operations $ (3.5) $ (0.8) 
Dividends related to Series B Stock(1) (0.1) (0.3) 

Loss from continuing operations available to common stockholders (3.6) (1.1) 
(Loss) income from discontinued operations (0.1) 28.1

Net (loss) income available to common stockholders $ (3.7) $ 27.0

Per common share:
Basic/diluted loss from continuing operations $ (0.23) $ (0.08)(3)

Basic/diluted (loss) income from discontinued operations $ (0.00) $ 1.99

Basic/diluted net (loss) income available to common stockholders $ (0.23) $ 1.91

(In thousands)
Weighted average common shares outstanding 15,966 14,111

Currently antidilutive common stock equivalents(2) 2,542 3,261
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For the Six Months Ended

(In millions)
June 30,

2012
July 2,
2011

Loss from continuing operations $ (6.8) $ (5.6) 
Dividends related to Series B Stock(1) (0.3) (0.6) 

Loss from continuing operations available to common stockholders (7.1) (6.2) 
(Loss) income from discontinued operations (0.1) 28.2

Net (loss) income available to common stockholders $ (7.2) $ 22.0

Per common share:
Basic/diluted loss from continuing operations $ (0.45) $ (0.44)(3)

Basic/diluted (loss) income from discontinued operations $ (0.01) $ 2.01

Basic/diluted net (loss) income available to common stockholders $ (0.46) $ 1.57

(In thousands)
Weighted average common shares outstanding 15,858 14,032

Currently antidilutive common stock equivalents(2) 2,291 3,834

(1) The Company�s Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.1785 per share on the Series B Stock for the dividend period January 1,
2012 through June 30, 2012. The dividend payment of $0.3 million was paid on July 2, 2012. The dividend payment of $0.3 million for the
period July 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011 was paid on January 3, 2012. The dividend payment of $1.9 million paid on July 1, 2011
was for the dividend periods January 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011, July 1, 2010 through December 31, 2010, and July 1, 2008 through
December 31, 2008.

(2) In periods in which there was a loss, the effect of common stock equivalents, which is primarily related to the Series B Stock, was not
included in the diluted loss per share calculation as it was antidilutive.

(3) The effects of the correction of the error reported in Note Eighteen �Restatement �Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share from Continuing
Operations� are reflected in the three months and six months ended July 2, 2011.

Note Twelve � Leases

Capital Leases

The Company acquired $1.0 million and $2.1 million of computer equipment and leasehold improvements using capital leases during the first
six months of 2012 and 2011, respectively. These assets were related primarily to investments in the Company�s Behavioral Analytics service.
There was $1.1 million and $0.8 million of depreciation on capital leases in the first six months of 2012 and 2011, respectively. All capital leases
are for terms of either thirty or thirty-six months. The liabilities for these capital leases are included in �Other current liabilities� and �Other
long-term liabilities� on the balance sheet.

The following is a schedule, by year, of future minimum lease payments under capital leases, together with the present value of the net minimum
lease payments as of June 30, 2012:

(In millions)
Year Amount
2012 $ 1.4
2013 1.5
2014 0.2
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2015 �  
Thereafter �  

Total minimum lease payments $ 3.1
Less: estimated executory costs (0.2) 

Net minimum lease payments $ 2.9
Less: amount representing interest (0.2) 

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 2.7
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Capital leases consisted of the following:

As of

(In millions)
June 30,

2012
December 31,

2011
Other current liabilities $ 2.2 $ 1.7
Other long-term liabilities 0.5 1.1

Total $ 2.7 $ 2.8

Note Thirteen � Segment Information

The Company operated in two business segments, the Behavioral Analytics Service Business Unit and the ICS Business Unit, until May 28,
2011, the date of the close of the sale of the ICS Business Unit, at which point the Company began operating in a single business segment,
focused primarily on Behavioral Analytics.

Note Fourteen � Fair Value Measurements

The Company reports certain assets and liabilities at fair value. Fair value is an exit price and establishes a three-tier valuation hierarchy for
ranking the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair values. The first tier, Level 1, uses quoted market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 uses inputs, other than quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets,
which are observable either directly or indirectly. Level 3 uses unobservable inputs in which there are little or no market data, and requires the
entity to develop its own assumptions. A financial asset or liability�s classification within the hierarchy is determined based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The following table provides the assets and liabilities carried at fair value measured on a recurring basis:

Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2012 Using

(In millions)

Total carrying
at June 30,

2012

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

(Level 1)

Other
Observable

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

(Level 3)
Money market fund $ 3.8 $ 3.8 $ �  $ �  

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011 Using

(In millions)

Total carrying
at December 31,

2011

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

(Level 1)

Other
Observable

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

(Level 3)
Money market fund $ 18.8 $ 18.8 $ �  $ �  

Note Fifteen � Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and short-term debt approximated their fair values as of
June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Note Sixteen � Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220) � Presentation of Comprehensive Income, which requires an
entity to present the total of comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other comprehensive income either in
a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. ASU 2011-05 eliminates the option to
present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the Statement of Shareholders� Equity. The items that must be reported in other
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changes were made to the calculation and presentation of earnings per share. In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-12, which deferred
the effective date of
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guidance pertaining to the reporting of reclassification adjustments out of accumulated other comprehensive income in ASU 2011-05. ASU
2011-12 reinstated the requirements for the presentation of reclassifications that were in place prior to the issuance of ASU 2011-05. The
Company adopted ASU 2011-05 effective for our fiscal year beginning January 1, 2012 and will retrospectively apply the new presentation of
comprehensive income to prior periods presented. Other than the change in presentation and disclosure, the update did not have an impact on the
Company�s consolidated financial statements.

Note Seventeen � Litigation and Other Contingencies

The Company is a party to various agreements, including substantially all major services agreements, under which it may be obligated to
indemnify the other party with respect to certain matters, including, but not limited to, indemnification against third-party claims of infringement
of intellectual property rights with respect to software and other deliverables provided by the Company in the course of providing services to its
clients. These obligations may be subject to various limitations on the remedies available to the other party, including, without limitation, limits
on the amounts recoverable and the time during which claims may be made, and may be supported by indemnities given to the Company by
applicable third parties. Payment by the Company under these indemnification clauses is generally subject to the other party making a claim that
is subject to challenge by the Company and dispute resolution procedures specified in the particular agreement. Historically, the Company has
not been obligated to pay any claim for indemnification under its agreements, and management is not aware of future indemnification payments
that it would be obligated to make.

Under its By-Laws, subject to certain exceptions, the Company has agreed to indemnify its officers and directors for certain events or
occurrences while the officer or director is, or was, serving at its request in such capacity or in certain related capacities. The Company has
separate indemnification agreements with each of its directors and officers that requires it, subject to certain exceptions, to indemnify them to the
fullest extent authorized or permitted by its By-Laws and the Delaware General Corporation Law. The maximum potential amount of future
payments the Company could be required to make under these indemnification agreements is unlimited; however, the Company has a director
and officer liability insurance policy that limits its exposure and enables it to recover a portion of any future amounts paid. As a result of its
insurance policy coverage, the Company believes the estimated fair value of these indemnification agreements is minimal. The Company has no
liabilities recorded for these agreements as of June 30, 2012.

Note Eighteen � Restatement � Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share from Continuing Operations

During the second quarter of 2012, the Company identified an error relating to its calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from continuing
operations in its previously issued financial statements. As described in Note Thirteen �Capital Stock and Series B Stock� of the �Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements� included in our Annual Report filed on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company
has paid periodic dividends on the Series B Stock and in 2011 repurchased certain shares of Series B Stock. Although the Company accounted
for the dividends and repurchase in its consolidated financial statements, it did not deduct the dividends or in 2011, the amounts paid in excess of
liquidation value in connection with the repurchase of certain shares of Series B Stock, when calculating basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations of common stock. To correct this error, the Company has restated its previously issued Consolidated Statements of
Operations as described in Note Twenty-Two �Restatement �Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share from Continuing Operations� of the �Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements� included in our Annual Report filed on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011. In accordance
with Accounting Standards Codification 260, �Earnings Per Share�, the restatement deducts from such amounts dividends paid on the Series B
Stock and the amounts paid in excess of liquidation value in connection with the repurchase of certain shares of Series B Stock.

The change in presentation had no effect on any other amounts or financial statement line items. The following table summarizes the corrections
to basic and diluted loss per share from continuing operations for the three months and six months ended July 2, 2011.

For the Three Months Ended July 2, 2011
As Reported Adjustment As Restated

Per common share:
Basic loss from continuing operations $ (0.05) $ (0.03) $ (0.08) 

Diluted loss from continuing operations $ (0.05) $ (0.03) $ (0.08) 
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For the Six Months Ended July 2, 2011
As Reported Adjustment As Restated

Per common share:
Basic loss from continuing operations $ (0.39) $ (0.05) $ (0.44) 

Diluted loss from continuing operations $ (0.39) $ (0.05) $ (0.44) 
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Item 2. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Background

Mattersight Corporation (together with its subsidiaries and predecessors, �Mattersight,� �we,� �us,� or the �Company�) is a leader in enterprise analytics
focused on customer and employee interactions and behaviors. Mattersight�s Behavioral Analytics service captures and analyzes customer and
employee interactions, employee desktop data, and other contextual information to improve operational performance and predict future customer
and employee outcomes. Mattersight�s analytics are based on millions of proprietary algorithms and the application of unique behavioral models.
The Company�s SaaS+ delivery model combines analytics in the cloud with deep customer partnerships to drive significant business value.
Mattersight�s applications are used by leading companies in the healthcare, insurance, financial services, telecommunications, cable, utilities, and
government industries.

Following the sale by the Company of its ICS Business Unit on May 28, 2011, the Company changed its corporate name from eLoyalty
Corporation to Mattersight Corporation, and began operating in a single business segment, focused primarily on its Behavioral Analytics service
(�Behavioral Analytics�). Through Behavioral Analytics, the Company generates two types of revenue:

(1) Managed services revenue, which is recurring, annuity revenue from long-term (generally three- to five-year) contracts and pilots,
which are shorter term (generally three to twelve months) and includes subscription and amortized deployment revenue; and

(2) Consulting services revenue, which is generally project-based and sold on a time-and-materials or fixed-fee basis and includes
follow-on consulting services revenue.

Set forth below is a more detailed description of the capabilities that the Company currently offers.

Behavioral Analytics

The Company�s multi-channel technology captures the unstructured data of voice interactions (conversations), related customer and employee
data, and employee desktop activity, and applies millions of proprietary algorithms against those interactions. Each interaction contains hundreds
of attributes that get scored and ultimately detect patterns of behavior or business process that provide the transparency and predictability
necessary to enhance revenue, improve the customer experience, improve efficiency, and predict and navigate outcomes. Adaptive across
industries, programs, and industry-specific processes, the Company�s Behavioral Analytics offerings enable its clients to drive measurable
economic benefit through the improvement of contact center performance, customer satisfaction and retention, fraud reduction, and streamlined
back office operations. Specifically, through its Behavioral Analytics offerings, Mattersight helps its clients:

� Automatically measure customer satisfaction and agent performance on every analyzed call;

� Identify and understand customer personality;

� Improve rapport between agent and customer;

� Reduce call handle times while improving customer satisfaction;

� Identify opportunities to improve self-service applications;
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� Improve cross-sell and up-sell success rates;

� Improve the efficiency and effectiveness of collection efforts;

� Identify customer experience issues and score calls for retention risk;

� Measure and improve supervisor effectiveness and coaching;

� Improve agent effectiveness by analyzing key attributes of desktop usage;

� Predict likelihood of a customer attrition; and

� Identify fraud callers and improve authentication processes.
The Company has designed a highly-scalable, flexible, and adaptive application platform to enable the Company to implement and operate its
Behavioral Analytics offerings for its clients. These offerings are primarily delivered through a SaaS+ model, as a managed subscription service
from which Mattersight derives Managed
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services revenue and Consulting services revenue. Managed services revenue consists of deployment and subscription services and Consulting
services revenue consists of post-deployment follow-on services, including coaching, training, and custom data analysis.

In addition to our Behavioral Analytics offerings, Mattersight also generates revenue from the following services:

(1) Marketing Managed Services, which consist of marketing application hosting services, from which the Company derives Managed services
revenue; and

(2) CRM Services, which consist of operational consulting services that enhance business performance through improved process efficiencies
and redesign of workflows, from which the Company derives Consulting services revenue.

Types of Revenue

Managed Services Revenue

Growth in Managed services revenue is primarily driven by the execution of new Behavioral Analytics contracts, under which we deploy and
provide ongoing managed services related to our proprietary Behavioral Analytics System and provide related Business Monitoring services.
Based on each client�s business requirements, the Behavioral Analytics System is configured and integrated into the client�s environment and then
deployed in either a remote-hosted or, in one case, an on-premise hosted environment. Thereafter, the client�s selection of our Behavioral
Analytics offerings is provided, on a subscription basis, for a period that is generally three to five years after the go-live date or, in the cases
where the Company contracts with a client for a short-term pilot of Behavioral Analytics prior to committing to a longer subscription period, the
subscription or pilot periods generally range from three to twelve months after the go-live date. The fees and costs related to the initial
deployment are deferred and amortized over the term of the contract.

We also generate Managed services revenue from Marketing Managed Services, specifically, from hosted customer and campaign data
management. This source of Managed services revenue is likely to diminish over time as we focus on growth through Behavioral Analytics.

Consulting Services Revenue

In addition to the Consulting services revenue generated by the Consulting services provided under our Behavioral Analytics contracts, we
derive a portion of this type of revenue from CRM Services for long-standing accounts. Consulting services revenue from CRM Services is
anticipated to diminish over time as demand for these services continues to decline and we focus on growth through Behavioral Analytics. We
bill for Consulting services on a time-and-materials or fixed-fee basis.

Business Outlook

Based upon Mattersight�s business development efforts and third-party market research, we believe there has been a fundamental shift in the way
large enterprises view data. The trends suggest that large enterprises today appreciate that there is value in data that can be derived from their
front and back offices, but they have not yet established efficient and effective methods to capture, analyze, and create value from this data. We
seek to help large enterprises capitalize on this data with our Behavioral Analytics solutions and, as a leader in this rapidly growing market, we
believe we are uniquely positioned to capitalize on this opportunity. We estimate the market potential in the United States for all of our current
analytics offerings at over $10 billion per year. The market for enterprise analytics is very new and we currently estimate it to be less than 5%
penetrated.
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Our business strategy to increase revenue, profitability, and capture market share includes the following elements:

� Increase up-sell and cross-sell ratios by deepening and broadening our relationships with existing clients;

� Win business with new clients, focusing on analyzing customer interactions and back office activities in targeted industries;

� Continue to invest in innovative proprietary technology, new applications, and delivery methods;

� Continue bookings growth and improve operating leverage;

� Expand our sales and marketing efforts with seasoned enterprise sales agents and strategic marketing professionals; and

� Develop partnerships and strategic alliances to expand sales leverage, improve brand awareness, and reach new industries while
providing value to our mutual clients.

Resulting from our delivery of measurable economic benefit to our clients, we have seen increasing penetration within existing accounts, due to
an increase in adoption of our base Behavioral Analytics offerings across separate and distinct business units, as well as the adoption of new
applications within existing business units. For this reason, we will continue to focus on further penetrating what we estimate to be a large
existing base market with a less expensive cost of acquisition. In addition, our strategy to further invest in sales and marketing, coinciding with
the fundamental shift in enterprise data utilization described above, has led to an increasing number of discussions with potential new clients and
strategic partners.

Managed Services Backlog

As a result of the strategic and long-term nature of Managed services revenue, we believe it is appropriate to monitor the level of backlog
associated with our Managed services agreements. The Behavioral Analytics Managed services backlog was $104.6 million as of June 30, 2012
and $96.3 million as of December 31, 2011. This increase in backlog is due to the value of the Managed services contracts signed in the first six
months of 2012 exceeding the amount of Managed services revenue in the first six months of 2012. We expect Behavioral Analytics Managed
service backlog to increase in the second half of fiscal year 2012 based on the impact of anticipated renewals of existing agreements and
anticipated contract signings with clients included in our current sales pipeline.

The Company uses the term �backlog� to reflect the estimated future amount of Managed services revenue related to its Managed services
contracts. The value of these contracts is based on anticipated usage volumes over the anticipated term of the agreement. The anticipated term of
the agreement is based on the contractually agreed fixed term of the contract, plus agreed upon, but optional extension periods. Actual volumes
may be greater or less than anticipated. In addition, actual agreement terms may vary from the anticipated terms because these contracts
typically are cancellable without cause based on the customer making a substantial early termination payment or forfeiture of prepaid contract
amounts. The reported Behavioral Analytics Managed service backlog is expected to be recognized as follows: $17.0 million in 2012; $31.5
million in 2013; $23.6 million in 2014; and $17.3 million in 2015; $15.2 million in 2016 and thereafter.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our management�s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based upon our condensed consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates
and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to the costs and timing of completion of client projects, our
ability to collect accounts receivable, the timing and amounts of expected payments associated with cost reduction activities, and the ability to
realize our net deferred tax assets, contingencies, and litigation. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions
that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
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We believe the following critical accounting policies affect the more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our
condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Discontinued Operations

ICS Business Unit Transaction

The sale by the Company of the ICS Business Unit and �eLoyalty� registered trademark / trade name to Magellan Acquisition Sub, LLC, a
Colorado limited liability company and wholly-owned subsidiary of TeleTech Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, closed on May 28, 2011,
and the Company changed its name from eLoyalty Corporation to Mattersight Corporation effective May 31, 2011. Therefore, the results of
operations of the ICS Business Unit are reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented. Additionally, certain corporate and general
costs that had historically been allocated to the ICS Business Unit were reallocated to the Company and are reflected in all periods presented.

Revenue Recognition

Continuing Operations

Behavioral Analytics Revenue

Behavioral Analytics revenue consists of Managed services revenue and Consulting services revenue.

Managed services revenue consists of planning, deployment, training, and subscription fees derived from Behavioral Analytics contracts.
Planning, deployment, and training fees, which are considered to be installation fees related to Behavioral Analytics subscription contracts, are
deferred until the installation is complete and are then recognized over the subscription period of the applicable subscription contract. The
subscription periods of these contracts generally range from three to five years after the go-live date or, in cases where the Company contracts
with a client for a short-term pilot of Behavioral Analytics prior to committing to a longer subscription period, the subscription or pilot periods
generally range from three to twelve months after the go-live date. Installation costs incurred are deferred up to an amount not to exceed the
amount of deferred installation revenue and additional amounts that are recoverable based on the contractual arrangement. These costs are
included in Prepaid expenses and Other long-term assets. Such costs are amortized over the subscription period of the contract. Costs in excess
of the foregoing revenue amount are expensed in the period incurred.

The amount of revenue generated from subscription fees is based on a number of factors, such as the number of agents accessing the Behavioral
Analytics System and/or the number of hours of calls analyzed during the relevant month of the subscription period. This revenue is recognized
as the service is performed for the client.

Consulting services revenue primarily consists of fees charged to the Company�s clients to provide post-deployment follow-on consulting
services, which include custom data analysis, the implementation of enhancements, and training. These follow-on consulting services are
generally performed for the Company�s clients on a fixed-fee basis. Revenue is recognized as the services are performed, with performance
generally assessed on the ratio of actual hours incurred to date compared to the total estimated hours over the entire term of the contract.

Other Revenue

Other revenue consists of Marketing Managed Services revenue and CRM Services revenue.

Marketing Managed Services revenue is derived from marketing application hosting. This revenue is generally in the form of fixed monthly fees
received from the Company�s clients and is recognized as the services are performed for each client. Any related setup fee would be recognized
over the contract period of the hosting arrangement.

CRM Services revenue consists of fees generated from the Company�s operational consulting services, which are provided to the Company�s
clients on a time-and-materials or fixed-fee basis. The Company recognizes revenue as the services are performed for time-and-materials
projects. For fixed-fee projects, revenue is recognized based on the ratio of hours incurred to date compared to the total estimated hours over the
entire term of the contract.

Reimbursed expenses revenue includes billable costs related to travel and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred while performing services for
our clients. An equivalent amount of reimbursable expenses is included in Cost of revenue.

Payments received for Managed services contracts in excess of the amount of revenue recognized for these contracts are recorded as unearned
revenue until revenue recognition criteria are met.

Edgar Filing: Mattersight Corp - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 38



22

Edgar Filing: Mattersight Corp - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 39



Table of Contents

If the Company�s estimates indicate that a contract loss will occur, then a loss provision is recorded in the period in which the loss first becomes
probable and can be reasonably estimated.

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from clients not paying for unpaid or disputed invoices
for contractual services provided. Additional allowances may be required if the financial condition of our clients deteriorates.

Discontinued Operations

ICS Business Unit

Managed services revenue included in the ICS Business Unit consisted of fees generated from the Company�s contact center support and
monitoring services. Support and monitoring services generally were contracted for a fixed fee, and the revenue was recognized ratably over the
term of the contract. Support fees that were contracted on a time-and-materials basis were recognized as the services were performed for the
client.

For fixed fee Managed services contracts, where the Company provided support for third-party software and hardware, revenue was recorded at
the gross amount of the sale. If the contract did not meet the requirements for gross reporting, then Managed services revenue was recorded at
the net amount of the sale.

Consulting services revenue included in the ICS Business Unit consisted of the modeling, planning, configuring, or integrating of an Internet
Protocol network solution within the Company�s clients� contact center environments. These services were provided to clients on a
time-and-materials or fixed-fee basis. For the integration of a system, the Company recognized revenue as the services were performed, with
performance generally assessed on the ratio of hours incurred to date compared to the total estimated hours over the entire term of the contract.
For all other consulting services, the Company recognized revenue as the services were performed for the client.

Revenue from the sale of Product, which was generated primarily from the resale of third-party software and hardware by the Company, was
generally recorded at the gross amount of the sale when it was delivered to the client.

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) amended the accounting standards for revenue recognition to remove
tangible products containing software components and non-software components that function together to deliver the product�s essential
functionality from the scope of industry-specific software revenue recognition guidance. In October 2009, the FASB also amended the
accounting standards for multiple deliverable revenue arrangements to:

(i) provide updated guidance on whether multiple deliverables exist, how the deliverables in an arrangement should be separated, and how the
consideration should be allocated;

(ii) require an entity to allocate revenue in an arrangement using estimated selling prices (�ESP�) of deliverables if a vendor does not have
vendor-specific objective evidence of selling price (�VSOE�) or third-party evidence of selling price (�TPE�); and

(iii) eliminate the use of the residual method and require an entity to allocate revenue using the relative selling price method.

The Company elected to adopt this accounting guidance at the beginning of its first quarter of fiscal year 2011 on a prospective basis. The
adoption of this guidance does not impact our revenue recognition with respect to Behavioral Analytics because the implementation services
sold with our Managed services are not separated into multiple accounting units because there is no standalone fair value for these services. We
recognize these services revenues over the anticipated subscription period. This accounting guidance does not change the units of accounting for
the Company�s revenue transactions or the methods used to allocate consideration to the units of accounting. The revenue recognition for each of
these offerings is discussed below.

For the ICS Business Unit, the Company utilized VSOE to allocate revenue to various elements in an arrangement. We determined VSOE based
on our normal pricing and discounting practices for the product or service when sold separately. In determining VSOE, we required that a
substantial majority of the selling prices for a product or consulting services fall within a reasonably narrow pricing range, generally evidenced
by approximately 80% of such historical standalone transactions falling within plus or minus 20% of the median selling price. For the ICS
Business Unit�s managed services, we established VSOE through the stated renewal approach. Previously, we were able to establish VSOE for
our product and service offerings except for software. If we were not able to establish VSOE for an offering, we attempted to establish fair value
by utilizing TPE. TPE is established by
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obtaining evidence from comparable offerings from a peer company. If the Company was unable to establish fair value using VSOE or TPE,
then the Company used ESP in its allocation of revenue. To determine ESP, we applied significant judgment as we weighed a variety of factors,
based on the facts and circumstances of the arrangement. These factors included internal costs, gross margin objectives, and existing portfolio
pricing and discounting.

Within discontinued operations, some of our sales arrangements had multiple deliverables containing software and related software components.
Such sale arrangements were subject to the accounting guidance in ASC 985-605, Software Revenue Recognition.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense over the vesting
period. Determining fair value of stock-based awards at the grant date requires certain assumptions. The Company uses historical information as
the primary basis for the selection of expected life, expected volatility, expected dividend yield assumptions, and anticipated forfeiture rates. The
risk-free interest rate is selected based on the yields from U.S. Treasury Strips with a remaining term equal to the expected term of the options
being valued.

Severance and Related Costs

We recorded accruals for severance and related costs associated with our cost-reduction efforts undertaken during fiscal years 2008 through
2012. The portion of the accruals relating to employee severance represents contractual severance for identified employees and generally is not
subject to a significant revision. The portion of the accruals that related to office space reductions, office closures, and associated contractual
lease obligations are based in part on assumptions and estimates of the timing and amount of sublease rentals, which may be affected by overall
economic and local market conditions. To the extent estimates of the success of our sublease efforts changed, adjustments increasing or
decreasing the related accruals have been recognized.

Income Taxes

We have recorded income tax valuation allowances on our net deferred tax assets to account for the unpredictability surrounding the timing of
realization of our U.S. and non-U.S. net deferred tax assets due to uncertain economic conditions. The valuation allowances may be reversed at a
point in time when management determines realization of these tax assets has become more likely than not, based on a return to predictable
levels of profitability.

The Company uses an asset and liability approach for financial accounting and reporting of income taxes. Deferred income taxes are provided
when tax laws and financial accounting standards differ with respect to the amount of income for the year, the basis of assets and liabilities and
for tax loss carryforwards. The Company does not provide U.S. deferred income taxes on earnings of U.S. or foreign subsidiaries, which are
expected to be indefinitely reinvested.

The Company may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be
sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial
statements from such a position should be measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon
ultimate settlement. Significant judgment is used to determine the likelihood of the benefit. There is additional guidance on derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties on income taxes, accounting in interim periods, and disclosure requirements.

Intraperiod tax allocation requires that the provision for income taxes be allocated between continuing operations and other categories of
earnings (such as discontinued operations or other comprehensive income) for each tax jurisdiction. In periods in which there is a year-to-date
pre-tax loss from continuing operations and pre-tax income in other categories of earnings, the tax provision is first allocated to the other
categories of earnings. A related tax benefit is then recorded in continuing operations. While intraperiod tax allocation in general does not
change the overall tax provision, it may result in a gross-up of the individual components, thereby changing the amount of tax provision included
in each category. In the first and second quarters of 2012, the intraperiod allocation was not applicable because we had a pretax loss in both
continuing operations and discontinued operations.

24

Edgar Filing: Mattersight Corp - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 42



Table of Contents

Other Significant Accounting Policies

For a description of the Company�s other significant accounting policies, see Note Two �Summary of Significant Accounting Policies� of the �Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements� included in our Annual Report filed on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Forward-Looking Statements

Statements in this Form 10-Q that are not historical facts are �forward-looking statements� and are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the �Securities Act�), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the �Exchange Act�). These forward-looking statements, which may be identified by use of words such as �plan,� �may,� �might,� �believe,�
�expect,� �intend,� �could,� �would,� �should,� and other words and terms of similar meaning, in connection with any discussion of our prospects,
financial statements, business, financial condition, revenues, results of operations, or liquidity, involve risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements. In addition to other factors and matters contained or
incorporated in this document, important factors that could cause actual results or events to differ materially from those indicated by such
forward-looking statements include, without limitation, those noted under �Risk Factors� included in Part I Item 1A of our Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2011, including:

� Uncertainties associated with the attraction of new clients, the continuation of existing and new engagements with existing clients,
and the timing of related client commitments;

� Reliance on a relatively small number of clients for a significant percentage of our revenue;

� Risks involving the variability and predictability of the number, size, scope, cost, and duration of, and revenue from, client
engagements;

� Management of the other risks associated with increasingly complex client projects and new service offerings, including execution
risk; and

� Management of growth and development and introduction of new service offerings.
We cannot guarantee any future results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements. The statements made in this Form 10-Q represent our
views as of the date of this Form 10-Q, and it should not be assumed that the statements made in this Form 10-Q remain accurate as of any
future date. Moreover, we assume no obligation to update forward-looking statements, except as may be required by law.

Second Quarter of 2012 Compared with Second Quarter of 2011

Services Revenue

Services revenue is total revenue excluding reimbursable expenses that are billed to our clients. Our services revenue increased 20% to $7.9
million in the second quarter of 2012 from $6.6 million in the second quarter of 2011.

Behavioral Analytics revenue was $7.6 million in the second quarter of 2012 and was $6.3 million in the second quarter of 2011. Behavioral
Analytics revenue increased $1.3 million in the second quarter of 2012, primarily due to increased subscription fees associated with the
conversion of several deployments to the subscription phase of the agreement.

Other revenue increased 11% in the second quarter of 2012 to $0.4 million. The increase in revenue was mainly due to higher demand for CRM
consulting services at one client.
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The Company�s top five clients accounted for 70% of total revenue in the second quarter of 2012 and 73% of total revenue in the second quarter
of 2011. The top 10 clients accounted for 93% of total revenue in the second quarter of 2012, compared to 91% in the second quarter of 2011. In
the second quarter of 2012 and 2011, there were three clients each that accounted for 10% or more of total revenue. In the second quarter of
2012, Vangent, Inc., Allstate Insurance Company, and Progressive Casualty Insurance Co. accounted for 20%, 18%, and 14% of total revenue,
respectively. In the second quarter of 2011, Vangent, Inc., Health Care Service Corporation, and Allstate Insurance Company accounted for
24%, 16%, and 14% of total revenue, respectively. Higher concentration of revenue with a single client or a limited group of clients creates
increased revenue risk if one of these clients significantly reduces its demand for our services.
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Cost of Revenue Before Reimbursed Expenses, Exclusive of Depreciation and Amortization

Cost of Services

Cost of services primarily consists of labor costs, including salaries, fringe benefits, and incentive compensation, royalties, and other customer
related third-party outside services. Cost of services excludes depreciation and amortization.

Cost of Behavioral Analytics revenue in the second quarter of 2012 was $2.9 million, or 38% of Behavioral Analytics revenue, compared to $2.9
million, or 46% of Behavioral Analytics revenue, in the second quarter of 2011. The percentage decrease in the Cost of Behavioral Analytics
revenue was primarily due to improved leverage of our cost structure resulting from higher subscription revenue in the second quarter of 2012
compared to the second quarter of 2011.

Cost of Other revenue in the second quarter of 2012 was $0.2 million, or 50% of Other revenue, compared to $0.3 million, or 100% of Other
revenue, in the second quarter of 2011. The decrease in cost was largely due to lower compensation expense.

Sales, Marketing and Development

Sales, marketing and development expenses consist primarily of salaries, incentive compensation, commissions, and employee benefits for
business development, account management, marketing, and product development personnel. The personnel costs included in this item are net of
any labor costs directly related to the generation of revenue, which are represented in Cost of services.

Sales, marketing and development expenses increased $0.6 million, or 13%, to $5.4 million in the second quarter of 2012 from $4.8 million in
the second quarter of 2011. This increase is due to the continued investment in our development, selling and marketing organizations.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries, incentive compensation, and employee benefits for administrative personnel,
as well as facilities costs, a provision for uncollectible amounts, and costs for our corporate technology infrastructure and applications.

General and administrative expenses decreased $0.6 million, or 23%, to $2.0 million in the second quarter of 2012 from $2.6 million in the
second quarter of 2011. This decrease is due to lower compensation expense of $0.6 million, primarily due to the reduction in our administrative
staff as a result of the sale of the ICS Business Unit.

Severance and Related Costs

In 2012 and 2011, a number of cost reduction activities were undertaken, principally consisting of personnel reductions and an office
consolidation. Cash savings related to cost reduction actions for the second quarter of 2012 are anticipated to be $0.3 million annually. The cost
reduction actions taken during fiscal year 2011 resulted in annual cash savings of $0.1 million. Costs related to office space reductions and office
closures were paid pursuant to contractual lease terms through January 2012.

Severance and related costs were less than $0.1 million in the second quarter of 2012 and $0.4 million of income in the second quarter of 2011.
In the second quarter of 2012, the $14 thousand of expense for continuing operations was related to severance and related costs for the
elimination of one position. In the second quarter of 2011, the $0.4 million of income for continuing operations related to the favorable
renegotiation of a facility lease, partially offset by severance and related costs for the elimination of one position.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization remained constant at $0.8 million in the second quarters of 2012 and 2011.

Operating Loss

Primarily as a result of the factors described above, we experienced an operating loss of $3.4 million for the second quarter of 2012, compared to
an operating loss of $4.3 million for the second quarter of 2011.
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Interest and Other Expense, Net

Non-operating interest and other expense remained constant at $0.1 million of expense in the second quarter of 2012 and 2011. In the second
quarter of 2012, the $0.1 million of expense was primarily related to interest expense on our short-term debt and capital lease obligation. In the
second quarter of 2011, the $0.1 million of expense was primarily related to interest expense on our capital lease obligation.

Income Tax (Provision) Benefit

The income tax provision was less than $0.1 million for the second quarter of 2012 and the tax benefit was $3.6 million in the second quarter of
2011. As of June 30, 2012, total net deferred tax assets of $58.2 million were fully offset by a valuation allowance. The level of uncertainty in
predicting when we will achieve profitability, sufficient to utilize our net U.S. and non-U.S. operating losses and realize our remaining deferred
tax assets, requires that an income tax valuation allowance be recognized in the financial statements.

(Loss) Income from Discontinued Operations

The loss from discontinued operations in the second quarter of 2012 was less than $0.1 million and in the second quarter of 2011, the income
from discontinued operations was $28.1 million, net of tax of $7.4 million.

The loss from discontinued operations of less than $0.1 million in the second quarter of 2012 was due to settlement costs relating to a former
employee of the ICS Business Unit.

The income from discontinued operations of $28.1 million in the second quarter of 2011 was due to the impact of the results of the ICS Business
Unit and the transaction costs associated with the sale of the ICS Business Unit. The pretax loss from discontinued operations of $1.0 million in
the second quarter of 2011 was due to the impact of the results of the ICS Business Unit and the transaction costs associated with the sale of the
ICS Business Unit. The pretax gain from the sale of assets included in discontinued operations in the second quarter of 2011 was $36.4 million.

Net (Loss) Income Available to Common Stockholders

We reported net loss available to common stockholders of $3.7 million in the second quarter of 2012 compared to net income available to
common stockholders of $27.0 million in the second quarter of 2011. Accrued dividends to holders of our Series B Stock were $0.1 million in
the second quarter of 2012 and $0.3 million in the second quarter of 2011. In the second quarter of 2012, there was net loss of $0.23 per share on
a basic and diluted basis, compared to net income of $1.91 per share on a basic and diluted basis in the second quarter of 2011. For 2011, the net
income was a result of the gain from the completion of the sale of the ICS Business Unit.

First Six Months of 2012 Compared with First Six Months of 2011

Services Revenue

Services revenue is total revenue excluding reimbursable expenses that are billed to our clients. Our services revenue increased 27% to $16.8
million in the first six months of 2012 from $13.2 million in the first six months of 2011.

Behavioral Analytics revenue was $16.1 million in the first six months of 2012 and was $12.3 million in the first six months of 2011. Behavioral
Analytics revenue increased $3.8 million in the first six months of 2012 primarily due to increased subscription fees associated with the
conversion of several deployments to the subscription phase of the agreement.

Other revenue decreased by $0.2 million in the first six months of 2012 to $0.7 million, from $0.9 million in the first six months of 2011, a
decrease of 22%. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the completion of several contracts for Marketing Managed Services.

The Company�s top five clients accounted for 68% of total revenue in the first six months of 2012 and 73% of total revenue in the first six
months of 2011. The top 10 clients accounted for 91% of total revenue in the first six months of 2012 and 2011. In the first six months of 2012
and 2011, there were four and three clients, respectively, that accounted for 10% or more of total revenue. In the first six months of 2012,
Vangent, Inc., Allstate Insurance Company, Progressive Casualty Insurance Co., and Health Care Service Corporation accounted for 19%, 17%,
13%,
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and 10% of total revenue, respectively. In the first six months of 2011, Vangent, Inc., Health Care Service Corporation, and Allstate Insurance
Company accounted for 24%, 16%, and 14% of total revenue, respectively. Higher concentration of revenue with a single client or a limited
group of clients creates increased revenue risk if one of these clients significantly reduces its demand for our services.

Cost of Revenue Before Reimbursed Expenses, Exclusive of Depreciation and Amortization

Cost of Services

Cost of services primarily consists of labor costs, including salaries, fringe benefits, and incentive compensation, royalties, and other customer
related third-party outside services. Cost of services excludes depreciation and amortization.

Cost of Behavioral Analytics revenue in the first six months of 2012 was $6.1 million, or 38% of Behavioral Analytics revenue, compared to
$5.7 million, or 46% of Behavioral Analytics revenue, in the first six months of 2011. The increase in cost was largely due to higher amortized
implementation costs net of cost deferrals of $1.0 million. The percentage decrease in the Cost of Behavioral Analytics revenue was primarily
due to improved leverage of our cost structure resulting from higher subscription revenue in the first six months of 2012 compared to the first six
months of 2011.

Cost of Other revenue in the first six months of 2012 was $0.4 million, or 57% of Other revenue, compared to $0.6 million, or 67% of Other
revenue, in the first six months of 2011. The decrease in cost was largely due to lower compensation expense of $0.2 million, driven by the
lower demand for our CRM services.

Sales, Marketing and Development

Sales, marketing and development expenses consist primarily of salaries, incentive compensation, commissions, and employee benefits for
business development, account management, marketing, and product development personnel. The personnel costs included in this item are net of
any labor costs directly related to the generation of revenue, which are represented in Cost of services.

Sales, marketing and development expenses increased $1.0 million, or 10%, to $10.6 million in the first six months of 2012 from $9.6 million in
the first six months of 2011. This increase is due to the continued investment in our sales and development organizations.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries, incentive compensation, and employee benefits for administrative personnel,
as well as facilities costs, a provision for uncollectible amounts, and costs for our corporate technology infrastructure and applications.

General and administrative expenses decreased $1.4 million, or 26%, to $4.0 million in the first six months of 2012 from $5.4 million in the first
six months of 2011. This decrease is due to lower compensation expense of $1.1 million, primarily due to the reduction in our administrative
staff as a result of the sale of the ICS Business Unit.

Severance and Related Costs

In 2012 and 2011, a number of cost reduction activities were undertaken, principally consisting of personnel reductions and an office
consolidation. Cash savings related to cost reduction actions for the first six months of 2012 are anticipated to be $0.3 million annually. The cost
reduction actions taken during fiscal year 2011 resulted in annual cash savings of $0.1 million. Costs related to office space reductions and office
closures were paid pursuant to contractual lease terms through January 2012.

Severance and related costs were $0.7 million in the first six months of 2012 and $0.4 million of income in the first six months of 2011. In the
first six months of 2012, the $0.7 million of expense for continuing operations was related to severance and related costs for the elimination of
one position. In the first six months of 2011, the $0.4 million of income for continuing operations was related to the favorable renegotiation of a
facility lease, partially offset by severance and related costs for the elimination of one position.
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Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization remained constant at $1.6 million in the first six months of 2012 and 2011.

Operating Loss

Primarily as a result of the factors described above, we experienced an operating loss of $6.6 million for the first six months of 2012, compared
to an operating loss of $9.2 million for the first six months of 2011.

Interest and Other (Expense) Income, Net

Non-operating interest and other (expense) income was $0.2 million of expense in the first six months of 2012 and was $0.1 million of income in
the first six months of 2011. In the first six months of 2012, the $0.2 million of expense was primarily related to interest expense on our
short-term debt and capital lease obligation. In the first six months of 2011, the $0.1 million of income was primarily related to favorable
exchange rates on intercompany settlements, partially offset by interest expense on our capital lease obligation.

Income Tax (Provision) Benefit

The income tax provision was less than $0.1 million for the first six months of 2012 and the tax benefit was $3.6 million in the first six months
of 2011. The $3.6 million tax benefit in the first six months of 2011 was primarily related to the tax accounting treatment of the gain on the sale
of the ICS Business Unit. As of June 30, 2012, total net deferred tax assets of $58.2 million were fully offset by a valuation allowance. The level
of uncertainty in predicting when we will achieve profitability, sufficient to utilize our net U.S. and non-U.S. operating losses and realize our
remaining deferred tax assets, requires that an income tax valuation allowance be recognized in the financial statements.

(Loss) Income from Discontinued Operations

The loss from discontinued operations in the first six months of 2012 was $0.1 million and the income from discontinued operations in the first
six months of 2011 was $28.2 million, net of tax of $7.4 million.

The loss from discontinued operations of $0.1 million in the first six months of 2012 was due to settlement costs relating to a former employee
of the ICS Business Unit. The pretax loss from discontinued operations of $0.8 million in the first six months of 2011 was due to the impact of
the results of the ICS Business Unit and the transaction costs associated with the sale of the ICS Business Unit. The pretax gain from the sale of
assets included in discontinued operations in the first six months of 2011 was $36.4 million.

Net (Loss) Income Available to Common Stockholders

We reported net loss available to common stockholders of $7.2 million in the first six months of 2012 compared to net income available to
common stockholders of $22.0 million in the first six months of 2011. Accrued dividends to holders of our Series B Stock were $0.3 million in
the first six months of 2012 and $0.6 million in the first six months of 2011. In the first six months of 2012, there was net loss of $0.46 per share
on a basic and diluted basis, compared to net income of $1.57 per share on a basic and diluted basis in the first six months of 2011. For 2011, the
net income was a result of the gain from the completion of the sale of the ICS Business Unit.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Introduction

Our principal capital requirements are to fund working capital needs, capital expenditures for Behavioral Analytics and infrastructure
requirements, and other revenue generation and growth investments. As of June 30, 2012, our principal capital resources consisted of our cash
and cash equivalents balance of $20.5 million, which includes $0.4 million in foreign bank accounts.

Our cash and cash equivalents position decreased $8.9 million, or 30%, as of June 30, 2012, from $29.4 million as of December 31, 2011.

The decrease in cash during the first six months of 2012 was primarily the result of the net loss before non-cash items, a decrease in unearned
revenue reflecting the recognition of previously deferred revenue, capital
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expenditures, cash dividend payments on Series B Stock, acquisition of treasury stock, and capital lease principal payments, partially offset by
accounts receivable collections and an increase in accounts payable. Restricted cash decreased $1.5 million for the first six months of 2012 and
$17.1 million for the first six months of 2011. Prior to June 30, 2012 restricted cash was primarily used as collateral for letters of credit issued in
support of future capital lease obligations. See �Credit Facility� description below.

The decrease in cash in the first six months of 2011 was primarily the result of the net loss before non-cash items, capital expenditures, cash
dividend payments on Series B Stock, acquisition of treasury stock, and capital lease principal payments, partially offset by lower working
capital requirements.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities of continuing operations during the first six months of 2012 and 2011 was $7.3 million and $6.5 million,
respectively. During the first six months of 2012, cash outflows of $7.3 million from operating activities consisted primarily of the net loss
before non-cash items of $2.9 million, a $4.1 million decrease in unearned revenue reflecting the recognition of previously deferred revenue
partially offset by accounts receivable collections of $0.7 million.

During the first six months of 2011, cash outflows of $6.5 million from operating activities consisted primarily of the net loss before
depreciation, amortization, and non-cash items, and an increase in prepaid costs of $2.2 million, which primarily consist of deferred deployment
costs, partially offset by unearned revenue of $0.4 million as a result of customer prepayments.

Net cash used in operating activities of discontinued operations during the first six months of 2012 was $0.2 million.

Net cash used in operating activities of discontinued operations during the first six months of 2011 was $4.7 million. During the first six months
of 2011, cash outflows of $4.7 million from operating activities of discontinued operations consisted primarily of a $5.1 million decrease in
unearned revenue reflecting the recognition of previously deferred revenue partially offset by lower prepaid costs of $1.0 million, due primarily
to the amortization of deferred deployment costs.

Days Sales Outstanding (�DSO�) for continuing operations was 20 days at June 30, 2012 compared to 26 days at December 31, 2011, an
improvement of six days. Because a high percentage of our revenue is dependent on a relatively small number of clients, delayed payments by a
few of our larger clients could result in a reduction of our available cash, which in turn may cause fluctuation in our DSO. We do not expect any
significant collection issues with our clients; see �Accounts Receivable Customer Concentration� for additional information on cash collections.

As of June 30, 2012, there were no outstanding liabilities for severance and related costs for continuing operations. See Note Six �Severance and
Related Costs�.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

The Company used $0.9 million of cash in continuing investing activities during the first six months of 2012 and $0.6 million during the first six
months 2011. Capital expenditures were primarily used to purchase computer hardware and software during the first six months of 2012 and
2011, respectively. We currently expect to incur new capital investments of between $4.0 million and $5.0 million for fiscal year 2012 and plan
on funding approximately $3.2 million to $4.2 million of these purchases with capital leases.

Net cash used in discontinued investing activities was $0 million during the first six months of 2012.

Net cash provided by discontinued investing activities was $33.9 million during the first six months of 2011. Proceeds from the sale of assets
held for sale were $34.5 million during the first six months of 2011, partially offset by cash usage of $0.6 million primarily due to capital
expenditures for the purchase of computer hardware and software.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

The Company used $0.5 million and $20.5 million of cash in continuing financing activities during the first six months of 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Net cash outflows of $0.5 million during the first six months of 2012
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were primarily attributable to: $3.7 million to purchase shares of Series B stock, $1.1 million of principal payments under our capital lease
obligations; $0.8 million of cash used to acquire treasury stock; and $0.3 million for cash dividend payments on Series B Stock partially offset
by proceeds from our revolving line of credit agreement of $3.7 million and a decrease in restricted cash of $1.5 million.

Net cash outflows of $20.5 million during the first six months of 2011 were primarily attributable to a $17.1 million increase in restricted cash,
$1.9 million for cash dividend payments on Series B Stock, $1.0 million of principal payments under our capital lease obligations, and $0.5
million of cash used to acquire treasury stock.

Net cash used in discontinued financing activities was $0 million during the first six months of 2012. Net cash used in discontinued financing
activities was $0.7 million during the first six months of 2011. The usage in the first six months of 2011 was for principal payments under our
capital lease obligations.

Historically, we have not paid cash dividends on our Common Stock, and we do not expect to do so in the future. A cash dividend on the Series
B Stock of $0.3 million, for the period January 1, 2012 through June 30, 2012, was paid on July 2, 2012, and $0.3 million was paid on January 3,
2012 for the dividend period July 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011. The dividend payment of $1.9 million paid on July 1, 2011 was for the
dividend periods January 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011, July 1, 2010 through December 31, 2010, and July 1, 2008 through December 31,
2008. Under the terms of the Certificate of Designations for the Series B Stock, unpaid dividends are cumulative and accrue at the rate of 7% per
annum, payable semi-annually in January and July. The amount of each dividend accrual will be decreased by any conversions of the Series B
Stock into Common Stock, as such conversions require the Company to pay accrued but unpaid dividends at the time of conversion.
Conversions of Series B Stock became permissible at the option of the holder after June 19, 2002. The Company expects to acquire between
$0.2 million and $0.3 million of treasury stock during the third quarter of 2012 to meet employee tax obligations associated with the Company�s
various stock-based compensation programs. In the second quarter of 2012, the Company spent approximately $0.1 million related to our Series
B Stock tender offer.

Liquidity

Our near-term capital resources consist of our current cash balance, together with anticipated future cash flows, financing from capital leases and
our revolving line of credit (See �Credit Facility� below). Our balance of cash and cash equivalents was $20.5 million as of June 30, 2012.

We anticipate that our current unrestricted cash resources, together with operating revenue and capital lease financing, should be sufficient to
satisfy our short-term working capital and capital expenditure needs for the next twelve months. Management will continue to assess
opportunities to maximize cash resources by actively managing our cost structure and closely monitoring the collection of our accounts
receivable. If, however, our operating activities, capital expenditure requirements, or net cash needs differ materially from current expectations
due to uncertainties surrounding the current capital market, credit and general economic conditions, competition, or the suspension or
cancellation of a large project, then there is no assurance that we would have access to additional external capital resources on acceptable terms.

Credit Facility

On June 29, 2012, the Company, together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries Mattersight Europe Holding Corporation and Mattersight
International Holding, Inc., as co-borrowers, entered into a Loan and Security Agreement with Silicon Valley Bank (the �Credit Facility�). The
Credit Facility provides for a $10.0 million revolving line of credit maturing in 2014 and is secured by a security interest in the Company�s
accounts receivable, equipment, inventory, cash, deposit accounts, securities, and all other investment property, supporting obligations, financial
assets, and other personal property, with the exception of the Company�s intellectual property rights. The Company and its subsidiaries, subject to
certain limits and restrictions, may from time to time request the issuance of letters of credit under the Credit Facility.

On June 29, 2012, the Company used the Credit Facility to repay in full the principal balance and accrued and unpaid interest outstanding under
the promissory notes issued by the Company to various affiliates of Technology Crossover Ventures to settle previously disclosed arbitration, in
an amount equal to approximately $3.7 million. The principal amount outstanding under the Credit Facility will accrue interest at a floating
annual rate equal to three
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quarters of one percentage point (0.75%) above the United States prime rate, payable monthly. In addition, the Company will pay a commitment
fee on the Credit Facility and a fee equal to one-eighth of one percent (0.125%) per annum of the average unused portion of the Credit Facility,
payable quarterly in arrears.

The Credit Facility imposes various restrictions on the Company, including usual and customary limitations on the ability of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries to incur debt and to grant liens upon their assets, and prohibits certain consolidations, mergers, and sales and transfers of
assets by the Company and its subsidiaries. The Credit Facility includes usual and customary events of default for facilities of this nature (with
customary grace periods, as applicable) and provides that, upon the occurrence of an event of default, payment of all amounts payable under the
Credit Facility may be accelerated and/or the lenders� commitments may be terminated. In addition, upon the occurrence of certain insolvency or
bankruptcy related events of default, all amounts payable under the Credit Facility will automatically become immediately due and payable, and
the lenders� commitments will automatically terminate.

Upon the effectiveness of the Credit Facility with Silicon Valley Bank, the Company terminated its loan agreement with Bank of America, N.A.,
dated December 24, 2010, as amended, which was scheduled to expire by its terms on December 31, 2012.

Accounts Receivable Customer Concentration

As of June 30, 2012, five clients, United HealthCare Services, Inc., CVS Caremark Corporation, Allstate Insurance Company, Wells Fargo, and
Blue Shield of California, accounted for 22%, 18%, 17%, 11%, and 11% of total gross accounts receivable, respectively. Of these amounts, we
have collected 53% from United HealthCare Services, Inc., 40% from CVS Caremark Corporation, 31% from Allstate Insurance Company, 52%
from Wells Fargo, and 64% from Blue Shield of California through August 2, 2012. Of the total June 30, 2012 gross accounts receivable, we
have collected 42% as of August 2, 2012. Because we have a high percentage of our revenue dependent on a relatively small number of clients,
delayed payments by a few of our larger clients could result in a reduction of our available cash.

Capital Lease Obligations

Capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 were $2.7 million and $2.8 million, respectively. We are a party to a
capital lease agreement with a lease company to lease hardware and software. We expect new capital lease obligations to increase by between
$3.2 million to $4.2 million for fiscal year 2012 as we continue to expand our investment in the infrastructure for Behavioral Analytics.

Contractual Obligations

Cash will also be required for operating leases and non-cancellable purchase obligations, as well as various commitments reflected as liabilities
on our balance sheet as of June 30, 2012. These commitments are as follows:

Continuing Operations

(In millions)

Contractual Obligations Total

Less

Than 1
Year

1 �  3
Years

3 �  5
Years

More

Than 5
Years

Letters of credit $ 1.5 $ 1.5 $ �  $ �  $ �  
Operating leases 3.2 1.0 1.7 0.5 �  
Capital leases 3.1 2.3 0.8 �  �  
Severance and related costs �  �  �  �  �  
Purchase obligations 2.3 2.3 �  �  �  

Total $ 10.1 $ 7.1 $ 2.5 $ 0.5 $ �  
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Letters of Credit

The amounts set forth in the chart above reflect standby letters of credit issued as collateral for capital leases. The amounts set forth in the chart
above reflect the face amount of these letters of credit that expire in each period presented.

Leases

The amounts set forth in the chart above reflect future principal, interest, and executory costs of the leases entered into by the Company for
technology and office equipment, as well as office and data center space. Liabilities for the principal portion of the capital lease obligations are
reflected on our balance sheet as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Severance and Related Costs

Severance and related costs reflect payments the Company is required to make in future periods for severance and other related costs due to cost
reduction activities in fiscal year 2012 and prior periods. There were no liabilities for severance and related costs as of June 30, 2012. Liabilities
for these required payments are reflected on our balance sheet as of December 31, 2011.

Purchase Obligations

Purchase obligations include $1.8 million of commitments reflected as liabilities on our balance sheet as of June 30, 2012, as well as $0.5
million of non-cancellable obligations to purchase goods or services in the future. As of December 31, 2011, purchase obligations include $1.4
million of commitments reflected as liabilities on our balance sheet, as well as $0.4 million of non-cancellable obligations to purchase goods or
services in the future.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220) � Presentation of Comprehensive Income, which requires an
entity to present the total of comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other comprehensive income either in
a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. ASU 2011-05 eliminates the option to
present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the Statement of Shareholders� Equity. The items that must be reported in other
comprehensive income or when an item of other comprehensive income must be reclassified to net income were not changed. Additionally, no
changes were made to the calculation and presentation of earnings per share. In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-12, which deferred
the effective date of guidance pertaining to the reporting of reclassification adjustments out of accumulated other comprehensive income in ASU
2011-05. ASU 2011-12 reinstated the requirements for the presentation of reclassifications that were in place prior to the issuance of ASU
2011-05. The Company adopted ASU 2011-05 effective for our fiscal year beginning January 1, 2012 and will retrospectively apply the new
presentation of comprehensive income to prior periods presented. Other than the change in presentation and disclosure, the update did not have
an impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

There have been no material changes in market risk as of June 30, 2012, from those detailed in the Company�s Annual Report filed on Form
10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Mattersight maintains disclosure controls and procedures that have been designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the
Company in the reports it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within
the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC and such information is accumulated and communicated to Company management
including its principal executive officers, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. The Company�s Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company�s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end
of the period covered by this report, as required by Rule 13a-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Based on this evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company�s disclosure
controls and procedures were effective.
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In conducting this evaluation in connection with the preparation of our Annual Report filed on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31,
2011, management identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting related to the process and procedures used in
applying appropriate accounting to basic and diluted loss per share from continuing operations. Solely as a result of this material weakness, our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the end December 31, 2011, the Company�s disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective. As disclosed in the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2012, we took the
actions necessary to strengthen our internal control over financial reporting, which addressed the material weakness.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in Mattersight�s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the second quarter of 2012 that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to affect materially, the Company�s internal control over financial reporting.

Part II. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

See discussion under Note Seventeen �Litigation and Other Contingencies� to the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item  1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes with respect to the factors disclosed in our Annual Report filed on Form 10-K/A for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Repurchase of Equity Securities

The following table provides information relating to the Company�s purchase of shares of its Common Stock in the second quarter of 2012. All of
these purchases reflect shares withheld to satisfy tax withholding obligations related to stock vestings under our stock programs. The Company
has not adopted a Common Stock repurchase plan or program.

Period

Total Number

of Shares
Purchased

Average

Price Paid
Per Share

April 1, 2012 � April 30, 2012 9,829 $ 8.59
May 1, 2012 � May 31, 2012 30,841 $ 7.03
June 1, 2012 � June 30, 2012 �  $ �  

Total 40,670 $ 7.41

34

Edgar Filing: Mattersight Corp - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 58



Table of Contents

Item 6. Exhibits

  **10.1 Letter Agreement between William B. Noon and Mattersight Corporation dated July 20, 2012.

      10.2 Loan and Security Agreement between Silicon Valley Bank, Mattersight Corporation, Mattersight Europe Holding Corporation,
and Mattersight International Holdings, Inc., dated June 29, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s
Form 8-K filed on July 2, 2012).

      10.3 Executive Employment Agreement, dated May 23, 2012, between William B. Noon and Mattersight Corporation (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s Form 8-K filed on May 30, 2012).

  **31.1 Certification of Kelly D. Conway under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  **31.2 Certification of Mark Iserloth under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  **32.1 Certification of Kelly D. Conway and Mark Iserloth under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

**101 The following materials from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2012, are formatted in
eXtensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL): (i) condensed consolidated balance sheets, (ii) condensed consolidated
statements of operations, (iii) condensed consolidated statements of comprehensive loss, (iv) condensed consolidated statements
of cash flows, and (v) notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

** Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on August 9, 2012.

MATTERSIGHT CORPORATION

By /s/ MARK ISERLOTH

Mark Iserloth

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Duly authorized signatory and

Principal Financial Officer)

By /s/ WILLIAM B. NOON

William B. Noon

Vice President of Finance

(Duly authorized signatory and

Principal Accounting Officer)
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